ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 3, 2004
1:33 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative JimHolm Chair
Representative Beverly Masek
Representative Vic Kohring
Representati ve Dan Ogg
Representative N ck Stepovich
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Al bert Kookesh

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 213

"An Act relating to a provisional driver's license and to
i ssuance of a driver's license; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CSHB 213(TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 388
"An Act relating to renewal of a driver's |icense by applicants
25 years of age or younger; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 213

SHORT TITLE: PROVI S| ONAL DRI VER S LI CENSE
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) EYHRAUCH

03/ 26/ 03 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 26/ 03 (H) TRA, L&C

04/ 01/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1: 30 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 01/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 01/ 03 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

04/ 03/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1: 30 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 3, 2004



04/ 03/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 03/ 03 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

04/ 15/ 03 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 15/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d/ Subconm ttee assi gned
04/ 15/ 03 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

01/ 22/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 22/ 04 (H -- Meeting Postponed to 1/27/04 --
01/ 27/ 04 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 27/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 27/ 04 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 03/ 04 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 388

SHORT TITLE: YOUNG CAN T RENEW DRI VERS LI CENSE BY MAI L
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) MEYER

01/ 20/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 04 (H) TRA
02/ 03/ 04 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff

to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented CSHB 213, Version X, on behalf of
Represent ati ve Weyhrauch, sponsor, and answered questions.

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 388.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Executive Director

Juneau Chapter

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the four Al aska
chapters of MADD in support of HB 388.

DUANE BANNCCK, Director

D vision of Mtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 388 and answered
guesti ons.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- February 3, 2004



KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver Licensing Manager

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 388 and answered
questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-3, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR JIM HOLM <called the House Transportation Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Represent ati ves Hol m
St epovi ch, Kohring, and Kapsner were present at the call to
order. Representati ves Masek, Ogg, and Kookesh arrived as the
meeting was i n progress.

HB 213- PROVI SI ONAL DRI VER S LI CENSE

Number 0064

CHAIR HOLM announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 213, "An Act relating to a provisional driver's
| icense and to issuance of a driver's |license; and providing for
an effective date."

CHAIR HOLM requested a notion to adopt the new proposed
commttee substitute (CS)

Nunber 0102

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH [noved to adopt the proposed CS
Ver sion 23-LS0786\ X, Luckhaupt, 1/29/04, as a work draft].

CHAIR HOLM clarified the version and announced that the
commttee would take it up. [Version X was treated as adopted.]

CHAI R HOLM recogni zed the arrival of Representatives Masek and
Ggg.

Nunber 0172
LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Al aska

State Legislature, spoke on behalf of Representative Wyhrauch
sponsor. She said Version X contains several changes nmade in

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- February 3, 2004



response to testinony and conments received at the |ast hearing.

The first change, on page 1, line 12, in the certification
section, reduces the hours required to transition from a permt
to a provisional license from 50 hours to 40 hours; she said

this is to accommopdate folks who live in |less crowded areas of
the state.

MS. SYLVESTER noted that a handout shows a breakdown relating to
[the anobunt of driving per week or nonth that would result in]
40 hours or 50 hours. In response to a request for an
explanation from Chair Holm she said a 14- or 15-year-old who
has a permt is required to hold it for six nonths. This bill
al so requires the parent to certify a m ninum anmount of practice

tinme. Ms. Sylvester remarked, "It's a very permssive
statenent. There's no ... enforcenent of it." She said it's an
educational tool to heighten awareness statewide of what's
really required for a kid to be a conpetent novice driver. | f

the 40 hours is acquired over six nonths' time, this breaks down
to 6.6 hours of driving each nonth, or 1.6 hours each week.

AN UNI DENTI FI ED MEMBER asked whether Ms. Sylvester believes that
is sufficient.

MS. SYLVESTER replied, "W think that's fair. Mot her s Agai nst
Drunk Driving disagrees and would prefer that it stay at 50

hours. ... It's a judgnent call." She noted that according to
comments, Alaska has a requirenment for 40 hours [of flying tine]
to get a private pilot's license; South Dakota, simlar to

Al aska in population and its division of rural and urban areas,
has a 40-hour [driving] requirenent; and California, which has a
different kind of environnent, and nost of the other states have
a 50-hour requirenent. Saying the idea isn't to make people
break the law by lying when they certify this, M. Sylvester
enphasized that it's an educational tool that includes sone
driving during the nighttinme or when the weather is bad and
conditions mght be icy.

Number 0377

M5. SYLVESTER addressed the next change, on page 1, line 13,
also in the certification section, which expands it from just
"nighttime driving" to "including ... increasingly challenging
ci rcunst ances, such as driving in inclement weather and
nighttinme driving". She explained that this |anguage conmes from
a brochure provided to the commttee that the Division of Mbtor
Vehicles (DW) wll be distributing to all the kids who cone in

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 3, 2004



to get a license; this change reflects that Alaska has nore
chal I engi ng circunstances than just darkness.

CHAI R HOLM recogni zed the arrival of Representative Kookesh a
couple of mnutes earlier.

Nunber 0442

M5. SYLVESTER turned attention to page 2, line 26. She
explained that once a provisional driver's license has been
issued, there is a six-nmonth restriction during which tinme kids
cannot drive around between 1 and 5 a.m There are two
exceptions. The first is that they may drive around with an
adult; the bill had said "25", but that was inconsistent wth
the other ages discussed in the driver's licensing statutes, and
so it had been lowered [to age 21 in Version X]. The second is
for a work permt; it had been suggested that the bill be very

clear that a young person driving in the scope of enploynent, to
and from work, would be exenpted [from the restriction] in the
m ddl e of the night. She enphasized that it's just for the
bri ef six-nmonth period during which there are severa
protections for the novice driver.

Number 0552

MS. SYLVESTER said the last change is inportant: on page 2,
line 31, a new [subsection] (c) has been added in response to
concerns that HB 213 mght infringe upon the hardship |icense or
of f-systens restricted license that DW i ssues. The desire is
to be very clear that this bill doesn't deal with that at all.

CHAIR HOLM asked Representative Kookesh whether that satisfies
sonme of his concerns.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said he'd talked to the sponsor and his
staff about it. He enphasized that the off-systens |icense is
"a different animal” and shouldn't be changed.

CHAI R HOLM noted that Representative Kapsner had voiced concerns

as well. He expressed appreciation that it had been addressed.
Nunber 0603

REPRESENTATI VE OGG began di scussion of a possible anendnent. He
said use of the word "enploynent"” |eaves out a spectrum in
Al aska - commercial fishing people - because a crewnenber isn't
an enployee and thus wouldn't fit under this. Therefore, he

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 3, 2004



suggested a clarifying anmendnent is needed to say "or the
person's commercial fishing work".

M5. SYLVESTER agreed such an anmendnent could be nade, but said

the work permt is envisioned to nost |likely be issued through
the police departnents that enforce this. Saying she doesn't
think it will be a "rigorous, ... hard-and-fast kind of an

i ssue, " she expl ai ned:

If a young driver is out driving around in the mddle
of the night and the police pulls him over, they're
going to pull out the departnent-issued work permt.
And what their main concern is going to be is that
they're not out driving around and joyriding in the

mddle of the night, and ... since they issued the
permt, they'Il be able ... to nake that call.
Number 0773

CHAIR HOLM surm sed that Representative Ogg wants to nmake sure
it's on the record that the intention is that those who aren't
"formally enpl oyed"” still fall underneath the protection.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG concurred, but said the | ess discretion given
to [the Departnment of] Public Safety, the fewer problems wll
arise, especially in this age group. He said clarity is best,
and added that he'd make that anendnent if it didn't cause
"great heartburn.”

MS. SYLVESTER suggested that there be a conceptual anmendnent
that the legislative drafters woul d address.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG remarked that he didn't want to hold the bil
further, since it had been through nunmerous hearings.

Number 0800

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH offered that he interprets "enploynent”
to mean "working" and thus no change is needed.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG responded that there <certainly is a
difference between an enployee and a conmmercial fisherman,
t hough.

REPRESENTATI VE  STEPOVICH suggested the person would be
"enpl oyed. "

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- February 3, 2004



[ The possi bl e anendnment wasn't addressed further.]

Nunber 0877

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG questioned the need for the governnent's
i nvol venent and this |aw He suggested perhaps this should
involve private entities or require nore parental involvenent
i nstead; suggested the need to |ook at what has been successfu
in other communities; and noted that an e-mail included in the

commttee packet from a constituent in the Mtanuska-Susitna
area discusses a successful community-run program there that
costs parents $80 for driver's training for a child.

MS. SYLVESTER replied that this enpowers parents to have nore

control over their kids' noving into a full, unrestricted
| i cense. Statistically, states that have adopted a GDL
[graduated driver's |icense] program have seen a dramatic

decrease in deaths, she reported; this ranges between 40 percent
and a low of 11 percent, with an average of 21 percent for the
drop in the death rate, to her belief. In addition, driving is
a privilege, not a right, and the state already regulates this
process by issuing a permt and requiring the young person to
hold the permt for six nonths; furthernore, people are
regulated in how they drive, and the state requires people to
drive using a seatbelt, for exanmple. She continued:

It's a balance, | would imgine, between ... public
safety and individual rights. And since this is a
privilege and the state has an obligation to protect
ot her people on the road, the state has an obligation
to protect nme, as well. ... And statistics show, again
- and the experience of other states - that ... by
addi ng these very sinple, very perm ssive steps, then
public safety is enhanced.

M5. SYLVESTER offered that this is a small inposition on the
young driver, but wll have a huge inpact. For six nonths, it
requires not driving in the mddle of the night or driving with
friends, which statistically are the deadly behavi ors.

Number 1090

M5. SYLVESTER said she believed the comment in the e-mail from
Representative Kohring's constituent was very good, reconmending

driver's educat i on. However , she told menbers that,
surprisingly, driver's education hasn't been shown to produce
these results; rather, it teaches people the rules of the road

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 3, 2004



and the laws, and provides a "holding period" that extends the
process of going to a fully unrestricted driver's |icense. She
went on to say:

That's the spirit of the GDL. And, again, $80

would be prohibitive for nmany people. School

districts ... aren't going to be able to pay that, and
it would be much nore intrusive of the state

to require famlies to pay that. The GDL is a very

sinple - sinple - beautifully successful program that

is very mnimal ... on the infringenent of the rights

of a young person.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG reiterated that nongovernmental solutions
should be explored and that perhaps the sanme goals could be
achieved through less government and nore activities at the
| ocal 1evel. He said he'd like to see (greater research on
effective comunity prograns in other states.

Nunber 1174

CHAIR HOLM returned to Ms. Sylvester's point that policies are
in place that allow people to have privileges if they don't
abuse them He acknow edged that he doesn't want [new drivers]
to put himor his children in harm s way.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH offered his wunderstanding that a
driver's education course could be used for the mandatory 40
hour s.

[ Ms. Syl vester nodded affirmatively.]
Nunber 1222

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK renmarked that the intent is good, but
Alaska is different from the Lower 48 as far as diversity and
the road system She explained that her only concern is about
potential inpacts on lowincone or single-parent famlies in
rural areas outside of Wisilla, for exanple, who don't have
noney for a driver's education course or the ability to put
their kids through 40 hours of driving in a six-nonth period.

Number 1293
REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH noved [to report CSHB 213, Version 23-

LS0786\ X, Luckhaupt, 1/29/04, out of commttee wth individua
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes].

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- February 3, 2004



CHAIR HOLM clarified the version and announced that wthout
obj ect i on, CSHB 213(TRA) was reported from the  House
Transportation Standing Commttee.

HB 388- YOUNG CAN T RENEW DRI VERS LI CENSE BY MAI L

Number 1322

CHAIR HOLM announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 388, "An Act relating to renewal of a driver's
| icense by applicants 25 years of age or younger; and providing
for an effective date.”

Number 1355

REPRESENTATI VE KEVIN MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,
explained how HB 388 fills a loophole in current statute.
Noting that it requires any person under the age of 25 to renew
hi s/ her driver's license at the D vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
office, he added that although there is a big push within the
state to encourage people to use the mail, the rationale of this
bill will come with further testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER expl ained that his office was approached by
Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD), Brown Jug Liquor, and DW
to sponsor this legislation; those entities felt HB 388 was
necessary because of the high rate of fraudul ent use of driver's
| i censes. He explained that many young people are renew ng
their driver's licenses via mail, giving it to a younger sibling
or friend, and then taking a birth certificate to the DW and
getting a new driver's license for thenselves. He cited a |arge
nunber of fake driver's |licenses that are confiscated at
Chil koot Charlie's, anong other establishnents, as a reason for
this | egislation.

Nunber 1478

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said DW, Brown Jug Liquor, MADD, and
others are interested in reducing the nunber of fraudulent
driver's license cases, especially in the 18- to 25-year-old age
group. He said he felt adults should be concerned and try to
prohi bit underage kids from obtaining tobacco and/ or al cohol.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER expl ained that passage of HB 388 would

assist DW in its transition to take digital pictures for the
| i censes. The bill would require all people under age 25 to

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- February 3, 2004



turn in their old driver's licenses when they go into DW to
renew their licenses, thus elimnating the wuse of the old
| i censes for fraudul ent purposes. He pointed out that driver's
licenses are nore than just sonmething that allows soneone to
drive; they are widely used as a credible source of positive
identification (ID).

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER enphasized that HB 388 is an attenpt to
help the State of Alaska, as well as private businesses, keep

underage kids from obtaining tobacco or alcohol. Al t hough it
won't prevent all kids from obtaining fake ID, tobacco, or
al cohol, it wll help close a |oophole in the statutes and nake

it harder for underage kids to obtain fake ID.
Nunmber 1615

CINDY CASHEN, Executive Director, Juneau Chapter, Mbdthers
Agai nst Drunk Driving, began by saying she was representing the
four [Alaska] chapters of MADD: the Anchorage, Fairbanks,
Juneau, WMat-Su chapters. She said MADD hopes HB 388 w Il pass
because of the belief that it will nmake a difference in underage
dri nki ng. Remarking that it was nice that the liquor industry
was on the "same teanf to help prevent mnors from consum ng
al cohol, she noted that HB 388 cane about after she, M. WMadden
from Brown Jug Liquor, and Ms. Hennings from DW net to address
probl enms with underage drinking and possi bl e sol utions.

Nunmber 1666

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH quoted from the January 21, 2004, e-
mai | ed docunent from M. Madden: "What we are finding is that
in many cases, these |IDs that have been renewed through the mai
are handed down to younger siblings, who then use the ID to
attenpt to purchase alcohol.™ Asking if there was any backup
information to support that statenent, he said he'd feel nore
confortabl e supporting HB 388 if the points were nore than just
hear say.

MS. CASHEN replied that the conmttee would be hearing from M.
Madden and from Chilkoot Charlie's; they would have that
i nformation.

[ M5. Cashen was informed that those people weren't on
t el econf erence. ]

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 3, 2004



M5. CASHEN said she wasn't a clerk at a liquor establishnent,
but has conversed with clerks at these places who have told her
that fake I1Ds were a problem

Nunmber 1728

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH cl arified that he wanted his constituents
to know that the decisions nmde were based on sonething
concrete.

M5. CASHEN agreed with Representative Kookesh and said those
facts would be presented to the committee.

Number 1755

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked why HB 388 affects people up to age 25,
when the | egal drinking age is 21.

M5. CASHEN deferred to Ms. Hennings from DW.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG said he'd |like an answer to that question
before noving forward with HB 388. He asked for further
clarification on the change in policy that would be enacted by
HB 388 and how there would be fewer instances of mnors
obtai ning fake IDs.

Nunmber 1819

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said DW wll answer the questions, and
expl ai ned to Representative Kookesh that his office has received
letters from Brown Jug Liquor stating that it has collected many
fake | Ds. He explained to Representative Ogg that if soneone
obtai ns nunmerous duplicate licenses fromthe DW, that person is
"flagged" and the DW investigates the circunstances and inforns
the individual that he or she is participating in fraudul ent
activities.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked what the difference is between soneone
putting a sticker on his or her license and giving it to a m nor
versus obtaining a license and giving it to a mnor and going
back to DW and getting a duplicate |icense. He asked how
HB 388 woul d change the nunber of people who would commit this
fraudul ent activity.

CHAI R HOLM suggested hearing testinony from DW to help clarify
sonme of the issues.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 3, 2004



Number 1930

DUANE BANNOCK, Director, D vision of Mdtor Vehicles, Departnent
of Adm nistration, wused an exanple that wunder the current
system soneone under age 25 could renew his or her I|icense
today by just obtaining a sticker via the mail. He said DW
wants to take those licenses out of circulation; elimnating the
option of renewal by mil would make it nore difficult for a
younger person to use a fake ID, because the older 1D would be
expired.

CHAIR HOLM commented that once a license is expired, it is no
| onger legal, and if someone was relying on an expired piece of
identification to obtain liquor, the establishnments are not
supposed to sell to soneone without valid ID, so he or she
shoul dn't be able to use the |icense.

Nunber 2028

MR.  BANNOCCK said Representative Holm was correct in his
assessnent, but wunder the current system a 24-year-old wll
renew the license via mail, put the sticker on the back, and
hand off the renewed license to the mnor, essentially providing
the mnor with a fake ID that is valid for five years. He said
the ol der person can go get a duplicate |license and have his or
her own valid personal |ID.

MR. BANNOCCK <clarified that HB 388 elimnates the renewal
stickers for people under age 25, so their licenses wll expire
and not be a legal formof ID that could be used by a m nor.

CHAIR HOLM asked if the older person could sinply renew a
license, hand it off to a mnor, and then go to DW and obtain a
duplicate |icense.

MR. BANNOCK answered that it could happen, but HB 388 doesn't
allow the older person to give the individual an ID that has a
sticker on the back that nakes it valid for five nore years.

Nunber 2094

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked what woul d prevent soneone who was
26 years old from doing the sanme thing that was not allowed to
soneone that was under 25 years old. Referring back to the
guestion he'd asked Ms. Cashen, he asked if there was a specific
case where the events that have been described have happened; if
so, he said he'd like to see it.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- February 3, 2004



Number 2130

KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver Licensing Manager, Division of Mtor
Vehicles, Departnent of Admnistration, responded that DW
recei ves many pouches of confiscated driver's licenses from | aw

enforcenent, liquor stores, and bars that have cone from m nors
who were attenpting to fraudulently use them to obtain al cohol
She cited cases where vyounger siblings wll wuse an older

sibling's I D when dealing with the police, pointing out that she
is working on a case right now where a younger brother got a DU
[driving wunder the influence] ticket and wused his older
brother's ID, <claimng he was his older brother. She said
instances |like these happen all the time and are very
unf ortunat e.

M5. HENNI NGS said what nakes HB 388 different is that because of
the new digital photography system the clerk will be able to
| ook at the old photograph of the person who was renew ng the
license that the DW has on file, and can nake a positive
identification before renewing the I|icense. Under the current
system by contrast, clerks rely on paper docunments to establish
identification. She predicted that using the digital photograph
system would drastically reduce the anobunt of driver's |icense
fraud.

Nunmber 2197

CHAIR HOLM asked if M. Hennings was saying DW is giving out a
| ot of fraudulent driver's |icenses.

MS. HENNI NGS responded that she wasn't saying that, but people
have m sused the system She added that DW works to the best
of its ability to issue the proper Ilicenses to the proper
peopl e, but the digital inmage systemw || cut back on fraud.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked if the digital inage system is
currently in place.

M5. HENNINGS said it isn't up and running now, but would be
wi thin the next few nonths.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked if that systemrelies on passage of
HB 388 to be set up.

M5. HENNI NGS sai d no.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- February 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked why HB 388 needed to be passed.

Nunber 2230

M5. HENNINGS shared that DW wanted a clean database of
phot ographs and wanted to get the old pouch of |icenses out of
circulation. Wthout renewal by nmail, those pouches of |icenses

woul d expire; the person would need to cone into DW and could
get a digital photo on file. She added that between the ages of
16 and 25, people's physical attributes change drastically.

Nunber 2248

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH asked if sonething on the driver's
license would give away fraud, or if DW needed to establish
fraud by checking nunmbers or waiting until people get caught
trying to fraudulently use an ID.

M5. HENNINGS said they wusually get the fraudulent IDs from
| iquor stores or bars where mnors are trying to use them to
obt ai n al cohol .

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH clarified that he wanted to know if
anything on the license itself nmkes it apparent that it is
bei ng used fraudul ently. He gave an exanple of a younger kid
using an I D who | ooks way too young and gets caught because of
t hat .

M5. HENNINGS said it is the establishnments that have caught the
fraudul ent use. She opined that it is hard to determne
peopl e's ages when they are that age; the photos are old, and
the people |look so young in them nmaking it easier for a young
person to pass as being ol der.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if the confiscated IDs that DW
receives fromthe various bars and |iquor stores have been valid
| Ds, just being used fraudul ently.

M5. HENNI NGS answered affirmatively.
Number 2339

REPRESENTATI VE OGG posed the follow ng scenari o: a 24-year-old
man renews his license through the mail and puts the sticker on
the back, making it wvalid. He then goes to DW - claimng he
|l ost his license, when really he gave it to his younger brother
- and obtains a duplicate. The second scenario he posed took

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- February 3, 2004



into account the effects of HB 388: a 24-year-old nman goes to
DW and receives a new license; he then goes to DW a coupl e of

weeks later and says he lost that |icense - when really he gave
it to his younger brother - and obtains a duplicate I|icense.
Representative (Ogg asked how HB 388 would prevent that from
happeni ng, suggesting the | oophole still exists.

M5. HENNINGS replied that the only thing HB 388 would do to
prevent that would be that the nmore current photo would make it
easier for the clerk at DW to identify soneone who was
attenpting to fraudulently obtain an ID.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG offered his understanding that the prem se of
HB 388 isn't necessarily to stop the fraud, but to make sure
there are current photos. He said there is a need for that
because peopl e change so drastically between ages 16 and 25.

TAPE 04-3, SIDE B
Number 2387

M5. HENNI NGS responded that the current photo is one benefit of
HB 388. More inportant, however, it gets the old |icenses off
the street and hel ps ensure that the younger photos aren't used.

Nunmber 2356

MR. BANNOCCK pointed out that under the current system soneone
could get a license at the age of 17 and it would be valid, if
renewed by mail, until age 27. He said HB 388 ensures that an
I D would only have a circulation period of five years. He noted
the benefit of the digital photo files, but said DW would
support this bill if the digital inmaging was not in progress.

Nunber 2321

CHAIR HOLM remarked that he is curious whether there is a
relationship between digitizing the IDs and a honel and security
dat abase.

MR. BANNOCK responded that there was no effort to create a
nati onal database, citing that digital inmges are just harder to
counterfeit, and Alaska is one of the only states that still use
Pol aroi d photos for 1Ds.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH offered his belief that the average age

for soneone in the mlitary in [lraq] is 21 to 24 years; this
bill wll inpact those people because they are out of the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -15- February 3, 2004



country. He said he has a problem penalizing people just
because they are under the age of 25.

M5. HENNI NGS noted that a statute grants a mlitary extension to
anyone who is out of the country on duty; that extension allows
90 days to renew that person's |license upon return to Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said he was just wusing that as one
exanple of sonmething he felt was unfair, saying that he didn't
like treating people under the age of 25 differently from
everyone el se.

Number 2214

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said he had sonme of the same concerns as
Represent ati ve Kookesh and wanted to know if there was a way to
make this law affect only those people who are 21 years old and
younger .

M5. HENNINGS replied that it was set up that way because not
everyone who conmes to DW to get a license for the first tine is
16 years old; a person could be 21, and those |icenses are good
for five years fromthe time they were obtained. She used that
and the fact that DW wants to renove the ol der-type |icense out
of circulation as the reasons for extending the age to 25.

M5. HENNI NGS expl ai ned that under current statute, a person over
the age of 69 cannot renew a license through the mail because of
the public safety issue; instead, that person nust conme in so
that it can be determ ned whether the person is nedically in
shape, has full faculties, and has had a vision exam She went
on to say DW views passage of HB 388 as a public safety issue,
hel ping to |limt young peopl e's consunption of al cohol.

Nunber 2129

REPRESENTATI VE OGG suggested that if DW were really trying to
make this a public safety issue, naking it harder for mnors to
obtain a fake ID, it would neke sense that people would be
required to get a new driver's license at the age of 21,
regardl ess of when the first one was obtai ned.

MR. BANNOCK replied that it wasn't that he disagreed with those
comments. He said DW is taking into consideration the needs of
the young people who are getting |icenses. He added that the
data DW has indicates that the majority of people who get their
driver's licenses before the age of 21 will conme into DW when

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- February 3, 2004



they turn 21, specifically to obtain a new license; the |icense
received before sonmeone turns 21 says "under 21" in three
di fferent places.

Number 2052

CHAIR HOLM remarked that he was having sone struggle noving
HB 388 because there hasn't been any data to support the clains
that have been nmade. He said he hasn't seen that this bill wll
cure a problem and that it is a significant enough problem to
attenpt to solve it.

MR. BANNOCK said he'll get the data to the commttee. He al so
clarified that HB 388 won't cure the problem [of underage
drinking], but is a giant step in the right direction to
elimnate a possible way for a mnor to access alcohol. He said
he was confident that passage of HB 388 would nake it harder for
a mnor to fraudulently use an ID.

Nunmber 1968

CHAIR HOLM thanked M. Bannock and announced that public
testi nony would be held open. [HB 388 was held over.]

ADJ QURNVENT
Nunber 1955
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
2:31 p.m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- February 3, 2004



